

PREAMBLE

WE the National Association of Ondo State Students of Obafemi Awolowo University, having firmly and solemnly resolved:

To live in unity and harmony as one indivisible and indissoluble Association under god, dedicated to the betterment of our members, development of our state and promotion of understanding, cooperation and peaceful co-existence among ourselves.

And to provide the Constitution for the purpose of encouraging and promoting the spirit of brotherliness among ourselves and the improvement of our welfare condition in order to ensure our positive contribution as future leaders to the economic, political and social and cultural state of our school, state and our country as a whole:

Do hereby make, enact and give to ourselves the following constitution, hereafter referred to as the constitution of the National Association of Ondo State, Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile-Ife.

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISION

SECTION 1

SURPREMACY OF THE CONSTITUTION

1. This constitution is supreme and its provisions shall be a binding force on all the members of the association as well as the Executive members of the Association.
2. The National Association of Ondo State Students shall not be governed; ruled or led, nor shall any person or group of person take the provision of this Constitution
3. If any other directive is inconsistent with the provisions of this Constitution, this Constitution shall prevail, and that order or directive shall to the extent of the inconsistency be void.

SECTION 2

THE ASSOCIATION

- (1) The Association shall be known and addressed as National Association of Ondo State Students, Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile-Ife.

SECTION 3

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

1. To promote unity, progress and understanding among members of the Association.
2. To improve and promote social and cultural activities among the members.
3. To improve the educational advancement of the members.
4. To discuss matters affecting Ondo State in general and members of the Association in particular and make recommendations when necessary to the appropriate authorities for the solutions.

SECTION 4

MEMBERSHIP, PRIVILEGES AND OBLIGATIONS

- (1) Membership shall open to all persons of Ondo state origin on their admission into Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile-Ife.
 - a. A person shall be deemed to be of Ondo State of Origin where his/her father belongs to any of the cities, towns, villages or Local Government Areas

making up Ondo State and registered officially with the Division of Students Affairs.

(2) A member shall have a privilege to:

- a. Use the facilities of the Association
- b. Participate in recognized meetings and functions of the Association
- c. **Vote and/ or be** voted for in Association's Election except otherwise stated by the constitution.

(3) A member's obligation shall be to:

- a. Pay his/her annual dues regularly
- b. Participate in activities of the Association
- c. Abide by the provision of this Constitution
- d. Avoid acts that tarnish the image of the Constitution

SECTION 5

THE CONGRESS

(1) The congress shall be made up of such members of the Association present deliberately voting and / or taking decisions affecting the Association and its members in pursuance of the aims and objectives of the Association as contained in this Constitution, besides all these:

- a. The Congress shall be supreme to any other committee body or organ of the Association whether elected or selected.
- b. The decision(s) of the Congress shall be final subject to the provision of this Constitution.
- c. The Congress shall have the power to direct any member(s) of a committee, body or organ of the Association whether selected or elected as to what to be done.
- d. The Congress shall nevertheless be subject to the supreme provisions of this Constitution.

(2) The power of the Congress in Section 5 (1) above shall be subjected to any other qualification or quantification or interpretation expressly given in any part of this Constitution.

- (3) The president shall have the power to call a Congress.
- (4) Where the President refuses to call a Congress, the other members of the Executive shall have the power to call a Congress provided:
- a. Such other members had earlier given two notices with an interval of a week each to the President.
 - b. That the number of such member of the Executive shall be enough to constitute a two-third ($2/3$) majority of all other members of the Executive excluding the President.
 - c. That all the members of the Executive that constitute the two-third ($2/3$) majority in the Section 5 (4) above shall write their names, Executive posts and duly sign in their usual signature, the two written notices in Section 5(4)
 - d. That all members of the Executive constituting the two-third ($2/3$) majority in section 5 (4)(a) and (b) and having complied with the provision in Section 5 (4) above shall also write their names, Executive posts held in the Association and duly sign the notice of the meeting made public to the members constituting the Congress.
- (5) Any other method used in calling a Congress, meeting or Quorum of the members of the Association shall be illegal and the decision taken from such a gathering shall be null, void and of no effect.

CHAPTER TWO
OFFICERS, PATRONS, MATRONS AND STAFF
ADVISERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

SECTION 6

Offices of the Association

- (1) The Association's Officers shall consists of the following
 - a. The President
 - b. The Vice President
 - c. The General Secretary
 - d. The Public Relation Officer
 - e. The Financial Secretary
 - f. The Director of Socials
 - g. The Assistant General Secretary

- (2) The appointment to all Association's Officers slated in Section 6(1) above shall by election.

- (3) The officers of the Association shall be sworn in by any of the Staff Advisers invited by the Electoral Commission to the Swearing-in Ceremony.

SECTION 7

The President

- (1) There shall be for the Association a President

- (2) The powers, duties, obligations and privileges of the President are that he/she
 - a. Shall be the first member and the Head of the Association
 - b. Shall be Head of the Executive Council of the Association
 - c. Shall exercise control over and co-ordinate all activities of the Association
 - d. Shall exercise all such powers and carry out all such duties as are hereinafter allocated to him/her under other sections, subsections or paragraphs of this Constitution.

- e. Shall be responsible for summoning of the Executive Council and the general meetings of the Union otherwise known as Association of Ondo State Student' Congress.
- f. Shall perform swearing-in of members of the various committee and commission set up during his/her tenure and any other member of the Association Executive whose election was late either by virtue of late determination by Election Petition Tribunal or as a result of the death, resignation or removal of the former Executive member.
- g. Shall exercise power that are not specifically assigned to other functionary of the Association or where such power, having been assigned other functionary failed to perform.
- h. Shall be responsible for the maintenance and management of the Association's properties and interest except otherwise stated by this Constitution and:
- i. Shall be a signatory to the Account(s) of the Association.

SECTION B

The Vice President

- (1) There shall be for the Association a Vice President who shall be a female
- (2) The power and functions of the Vice are to:
 - a. Advice and assist the President in his duties as may be delegated to her
 - b. Rightfully advice the President
 - c. Carryout such activities that may be assigned from time to time by the President
 - d. Deputies for the President in his absence and
 - e. Be the head of the Orientation Committee

SECTION 9

The General Secretary

- (1) There shall be a General Secretary for the Association
- (2) The powers and functions of the General Secretary are that:
 - a. Shall be in charge of all secretarial duties of the Association
 - b. Shall handle all correspondence of the Association

- c. Shall at the request of the President, summon all the Association's Executive, Committee and or general meetings otherwise called the Congress.
- d. Shall keep the attendance book, minutes and records of the Association's Executive, Committee and general meetings.
- e. Shall present regular report to the general meeting and
- f. Shall carryout such other functions as may assigned to him by the President, the Congress and other articles of this Constitution.
- g. Shall be a signatory to the Association's account.

SECTION 10

The Public Relation Officer

- (1) There shall be a Public Relation Officer for the Association

- (2) The functions of the Public Relation Officer are that:
 - a. Shall publicize the activities of the Association prior to and after the general meeting as appropriate
 - b. Shall at instance of the President or the Congress organize rallies and symposia in the interest of the Association.
 - c. Shall carryout activities other activity(ies) that may be assigned to him by the President and / or the Congress and
 - d. Shall be in Charge of the Association's Library

SECTION 11

The Financial Secretary

- (1) There shall be a Financial Secretary for the Association,

- (2) The duties and functions of the Financial Secretary are that he:
 - a. Shall collect all revenues of the Association and deposit them in the treasury within forty eight (48) hours of such collection.
 - b. Shall issue receipts for the money collected and pay such in the treasury within the stipulated time in Section 11 (2) (a) above
 - c. Shall keep statement of accounts of the Association and such other relevant document as may be permitted by the President relating to the Account of the Association.

- d. Shall seek all reasonable avenues to increase the Association's revenue subject to the approval of the Congress.
- e. Shall subject to the approval of the President collect and keep accounts of all expenses incurred on behalf of the Association and prepared an annual financial report to be presented to the Association at the Congress.
- f. Shall keep imprest account and hold an amount not more than one thousand naira only.
- g. Shall give financial advice to the Executive
- h. Shall carryout other functions as may be assigned to him/her by the President, the Congress and / or other provisions of this Constitution.
- i. Shall be a signatory to the Association's account.

SECTION 12

The Director of Socials

- (1) There shall be a Director of Social for the Association
- (2) The function and the duties of the Director of Socials are that he/she:
 - a. Shall arrange all social activities and present reports of particular event to the Congress and the Executive
 - b. Shall in the interest of the Association meets with similar Associations and social organizations on the campus or elsewhere in the interest of the Association in matters relating to his/her office.
 - c. Shall carryout such other functions as may be assigned to him/her by the President and /or the Congress.

SECTION 13

The Assistant General Secretary

- (1) There shall be an Assistant General Secretary for the Association
- (2) The function of the Association Assistant General Secretary are that he/she:
 - a. Shall assist the General Secretary in his duties as may be assigned to him and shall deputize for the General Secretary in his/her absence and
 - b. Shall carryout such other function as maybe assigned to him by the President and/or the Congress.

SECTION 14

LEGISLATURE POWER

The legislative power of the NAOSS is herein vested in the Ondo State Students Representative Council and the Congress.

SECTION 15

THE OSSRC

There shall be Ondo State Students Representative Council (referred to as OSSRC)

SECTION 16

COMPOSITION OF THE OSSRC

- (1) The OSSRC shall consist not more than thirty-six members

- (2) As at a time of election, every members of OSSRC shall be the president and the Vice-President of each recognized association (representing any of the 18 Local Governments in Ondo State).

- (3) There shall be a speaker, a Deputy Speaker and a Clerk elected from OSSRC

SECTION 17

DUTIES AND POWER OF THE OSSRC

- (1) The OSSRC shall consider and approve budget proposal for the Executive Council and shall meet at least three times in a semester

- (2) The OSSRC shall consider the budget proposal within one month after the swearing-in of the members

- (3) The OSSRC shall call for, consider, and pass resolutions on the progress reports of any Council, committee or commission.

- (4) The OSSRC shall have power to summon the whole or any member(s) of the Executive or committee to appear not less than seventy-two hours notice shall be given to the officer(s).
- (5) The OSSRC shall have power to pass resolution on any matter(s) affecting the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ONDO STATE STUDENTS in so far as such resolution(s) do not conflict with this Constitution.
- (6) All such resolution(s) shall be forwarded to the President for implementation and shall within a time frame stipulated by the House implement such resolutions
- (7) The OSSRC shall summon the President if he refuses to implement the resolution at the expiration of the stipulated time to explain the reason(s) for his refusal to implement such resolution(s): If such resolution is again passed by 2/3 majority of members of the OSSRC it shall become binding on him for implementation.
- (8) The OSSRC may review any action or programme proposed or undertaken by the Executive Council or any Committee of the society or any member thereof.

SECTION 18

TENURE OF OSSRC

The OSSRC shall function for one academic session and shall stand dissolved on the day the Electoral Commission is constituted.

SECTION 19

OFFICERS OF THE LEGISLATURE

(1) THE SPEAKER

- a. The speaker shall preside over the proceedings of the OSSRC and shall impartially direct proceedings and maintain order therein.
- b. He shall summon through the clerk all meetings of the OSSRC within 72 hours of receipt of notice by the members.

- c. The speaker shall declare vacant the seat of any member who absents himself for three consecutive sittings without the speaker's prior permission subjects to the approval of the OSSRC
- d. He shall cast a vote whenever the need arises.
- e. He shall appoint the sergeant-at-arm who shall be an indigene of ONDO STATE.

(2) THE DEPUTED SPEAKER

- a. The Deputy speaker shall be a female member of the House (herein referred to as he)
- b. He shall act as the speaker in the inters absence
- c. He shall at every meeting of the OSSRC take the roll call of the members present and shall within 24hours after the adjournment send a list of absentee member(s) to the Speaker for necessary action in accordance with the provisions of the constitution.
- d. He shall be the Electoral Officer of the OSSRC and as such not vote.
- e. Where and/or whenever he has to act for the speaker, he shall appoint any qualified person to perform the duties of the Deputy speaker as a matter of discretion.

(3) THE CLERK

- a. He shall record minutes of the OSSRC sitting
- b. He shall compile details of all the proceedings of the OSSRC
- c. He shall prepare in advance the agenda of all the major pints to be discussed at the OSSRC.
- d. He shall on the instruction of the Speaker distribute notice of meetings to all members of the OSSRC not later than 72 hours before OSSRC meetings
- e. He shall carryout other duties as may be assigned to him by the Speaker.

SECTION 20

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

- (1) The election of the principal officers of the OSSRC shall be conducted by the Electoral commission.

- (2) The election shall be held after the proclamation of the president for holding of the first session of the LSRC.
- (3) As at the time of the election, the principal officers shall be elected by the OSSRC from among its members.
- (4) The election shall be by secret ballot.

SECTION 21

THE EXECUTIVE OF ASSOCIATION

- (1) The Executive Association shall consist of all officers of the Association as contained in Section 6 (1)(a)-(g)
- (2) The functions of the Executive of the Association shall be:
 - a. To formulate reasonable policies for the Association subject to the ratification of the Congress
 - b. To direct the affairs of the Association and organize the general Congresses
 - c. To take reasonable decision(s) on behalf of the Association in case of emergency and
 - d. Such other function that may be deemed fit for the progress of the Association
- (3) The Executive shall be subject to the provisions of this Constitution
- (4) The decision of the Congress shall have a supremely binding effect on all members of the Association Executive notwithstanding any view(s) they hold of action (s) they may take, be taking or might have taken to the contrary.

SECTION 22

PATRONS AND MATRONS OF THE ASSOCIATION

- (1) The Executive of the Association may nominate Matrons and Patrons for the Association

- (2) The number of such Matrons and patrons and their selection or nomination shall be subjected to the approval of the Congress
- (3) Approval of the Congress in this section shall be determined by a two-third (2/3) majority of the total vote cast at an approval Congress of the Association at a sitting
- (4) The Executive shall have the power to appoint a Grand Patron
 - a. The Grand Patron shall be the Executive Governor of Ondo State
 - b. A person shall cease to be the Grand Patron when he ceases to be the governor of Ondo State.
- (5) The duties of the Matrons and Patrons shall be:
 - a. To give financial and moral support to the Association
 - b. To meet with the Association when their assistance is needed
 - c. To advise the Association to ensure a reasonable realization of the Association objectives and
 - d. To when necessary, perform such other duties as arc reasonably performed by Matrons and Patrons
- (6)
 - a. The Executive subject to the approval to the Congress shall determine whether to terminate the appointment of any Matron or Patron found wanting
 - b. Such shall be determined by 2/3 majority of voters of the members present in a Congress

SECTION 23

STAFF ADVISERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

- (1) Executive members of the Association have the power to appoint Staff Advisers
 - a. The appointment of such be subjected to the approval of the Congress
 - b. The number of the staff advisers shall not exceed five (5)
- (2) The tenure of an adviser shall not be more than four (4) academic sessions and such appointment may be renewed at the expiration of his tenure of office

- (3) Apart from the provision of Section 16(2) above, the tenure of office of any adviser shall be determined if:
- a. He dies while holding the office
 - b. He resigns his post by a written notice to the Association, through the general Secretary of the Association two (2) weeks before the commencement of such resignation.
- (4) The duties of the Staff Advisers shall be:
- a. To give support to the Association
 - b. To reasonably advise the Association
 - c. To meet with and assist the Association when their services are needed by the Association
 - d. To Assist any member of the Association who is in need of their assistance
 - e. To call for a written account (Financial and as necessary) of the Executive members through the President, and
 - f. Such duties that is usually performed by staff advisers or as directed by the Congress
- (5) The Staff Adviser shall be at the last Congress of the Association
- (6) A periodic report shall be made to staff advisers on the state of the Association by the President
- (7) Any of the staff advisers shall on invitation of the Electoral commission do so perform the swearing-in ceremony of the new Executive members.

CHAPTER THREE

PART ONE

COMMITTEES, ELECTORAL COMMISSION AND INTO EXECUTIVE POSTS

SECTION 24

- (1) There shall be established for the Association the following committee, namely;
 - a. Orientation committee
 - b. Social and Culture Committee

- (2) The number of the committee shall be subject to the review by the Congress

SECTION 25

APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIRMAN, SECRETARY AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE, TENURE AND TERMS

- (1) Except where otherwise provided by this constitution, members of the committee shall be appointed by the Congress

- (2) The number of the committee shall not be more than seven (7) except as otherwise provided by this constitution.

- (3) The Chairman and the Secretary of each Committee shall be appointed by the Congress

- (4) No member of the Committee shall hold such position such office more than
 - a. Academic session
 - b. The Congress deemed it fit

- (5) The president shall reserve the right and power to dissolve all existing committees not constituted during his tenure.

SECTION 26

- (1) There shall be an orientation committee

- (2) The orientation committee shall consist of such number as may be determined by the congress subject to the provision of those constitution
- (3) The Vice President shall be the Chairman of this committee
- (4) The committee shall organize programs for the orientation of the new members of the Association
- (5) It shall also perform such other function(s) as may be assigned to it by the Executive and / or the Congress.

SECTION 27

- (1) There shall be a Social and Culture Committee
- (2) The committee shall consist of such members as determined by the Congress Subject to the provision of this Constitution
- (3) The committee shall be headed by the Director of Socials of the Association
- (4) The committee shall co-ordinate all social activities of the Association
- (5) The Committee shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to it by the Executive and/or the Congress

SECTION 28

The congress shall on the advice of the Executive and subject to the provision of this constitution have the power to create from time any other committee it may deem fit and assigned to same all function that committee like position performs.

PART TWO

SECTION 29

A. ELECTORAL COMMISSION

- (1) There shall be an Electoral Commission to be setup by the Congress and the number shall be subject to Section 18(2) of this Constitution be determined by the Congress
- (2) The Commission shall be responsible for organizing elections into the Executive posts of the Association and other by-elections of the Association to fill any vacant post
- (3) Subject to the provision of this constitution, the Electoral commission shall be saddled with the task of fashioning out the mode of conducting such Elections
- (4) Shall organize and arrange in conjunction with the Executive members the swearing-in ceremony of the newly elected members of the Association's Executive.

SECTION 30

B. ELECTION PETITIONS

- (1) There shall be an Electoral Petition Tribunal to be setup by the Congress before any election is held
- (2) Any member of the Tribunal shall not be holding any post either:
 - a. As member of the Union's Executive
 - b. As a member of any other committee or commission setup by this Constitution or congress and
 - c. Or as a member of any other committee, commission, agency or group or that may be setup in the name of the Association in whatever capacity or for whatever purpose
- (3) Where such a person as may have been excluded by virtue of the provisions of this Constitution in section 23(2) (a) – (c) is nonetheless appointed as a member of the Tribunal, his/her appointment as a member of the Tribunal shall be null and void
- (4) The decision of the Tribunal, subject to a contrary ruling of a superior Court shall be final

- (5) The Tribunal shall be made up of five (5) members, one of whom shall be a Law student, at least of a penultimate class
- (6) The decision of the Tribunal shall be determined by a simple majority of all its five members freely given in a sitting.

SECTION 31

C. THE ASSOCIATION'S ELECTION

QUALIFICATION FOR ELECTION

- (1) Candidate for election into any Executive post of the Association created by this Constitution shall:
 - a. Be eligible and bona fide student of Obafemi Awolowo University
 - b. Be a financial member of the Union
 - c. Have been through at least one (1) academic session and
 - d. Shall be certified at least ten (10) members of the Association attesting to his/her eligibility.

SECTION 32

- (1) Election into the Union's Executive shall not be conducted earlier than the fifth (5th) week of the second semester of every other new session and it shall be later than the eighth (8th) week of such semester
- (2) The Electoral Commission shall subject to the provision of this Constitution set out the mode of conducting election in the Association.
- (3) The mode of Conducting Elections shall be subject to any contrary provision in this Constitution be subjected amendment and /or ratification of the Congress
- (4) Election into any Executive position shall be by Secret Ballot
- (5) All votes cast at any election conducted by the Electoral Commission shall be counted immediately after the completion of the election of the Association and the results announced by the Chairman of the Electoral Commission.
- (6) A candidate shall be declared winner by the Chairman of the Electoral Commission if he/she has a simple majority of all votes cast by the financial members present and voted.

- (7) Where more than one of the candidates has the highest and equal member of votes, there shall be a run-off election within a reasonable period to be determined by the electoral commission provided such period shall not exceed fourteen (14) days and the same shall continue until a winner emerges.

SECTION 33

All the provisions of the Constitution in respect of the Electoral commission and or the Association as a whole shall be binding on any other body, committee or commission or any other person or group of persons by whatever name called that is saddle with the task of conducting any election whatsoever in the Association either created by this Constitution in the future.

SECTION 34

The Electoral Commission shall be suspended by the President after the Executives members have been sworn in.

SECTION 35

REDRESS

- (1) Any aggrieved member of the Association shall have the right to file an action on election petition Tribunal not later than forty-eight (48) hours after the declaration of the winner of such an election.
- (2) Where an Election is declared null or void, the Tribunal shall declare the seat of such officer vacant and bye election shall be held accordingly.
- (3) Vacancies in the Association's Executive post during the session owing either to the death, resignation or removal of the officers in the affected, office(s) shall be filled through bye-election
- (4) The Electoral Petition Tribunal shall be suspended by the Association's President after the swearing-in except there is a petition pending before the Tribunal
- (5) Any candidate and / or his agent that arc / is guilty of election mal practices shall lose his eligibility to contest in any election of the Association.

CHAPTER FOUR

PART ONE

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 36

REMOVAL OF OFFICERS

- (1) Any officer of the Association may resign from his/her post after having given one week notice in writing to the President subject to the confirmation of the Congress
- (2) Any officer of the Association shall be deemed removed from office where;
 - a. There is a two-third (2/3) majority of votes of those present cast in support of such removal by the Congress
 - b. The Congress where the decision (2)(a) above is taken must have been called in accordance with the provision of the Constitution; the members present must form a Quorum
 - c. The Officer/Officers to be removed must be given a fair hearing in accordance with the principle of Natural Justice, Equity and Good Conscience
 - d. The quorum referred to in section 29(2)(b) must not be less than one-sixth(1/6) of the total members of the Association.
- (3) Where the President refuses to call a congress, two-third (2/3) majority of the votes cast by all the members of the Executive excluding the president shall vest the power in the most senior of them to call a congress for the purpose of effecting any removal of any member(s) of the Executive
- (4) The total number of votes cast shall be limited only to the number of votes cast by the financial members of the Association present and voting on the day of such removal.

PART TWO
FINANCES OF THE ASSOCIATION

SECTION 37

SOURCES OF REVENUE

- (1) The amount payable by the members as annual dues per session shall be subject to the approval of the Congress
- (2) The approval of the Congress in session (30)(1) shall be by two-third (2/3) majority approval of the amount
- (3) The Association may subject to the approval of the congress raise money through levies and donations in addition to annual dues.
- (4) The Association may raise money through profit accruing from activities organized by the Association.
- (5) The Association may raise money from financial assistance given by patrons, matrons and grand patrons and donors
- (6) The Congress shall have power to determine such other sources of income for the Association as it deems fit
- (7) No member shall be compelled to pay any amount other than those set up in this Constitution without the prior approval of two-third (2/3) majority of the Congress.

SECTION 38

ACCOUNT OF THE ASSOCIATION

- (1) The Association shall have a Current Account with any commercial Bank in Ile-Ife.
- (2) The signatories to the Association's account shall be the President, Financial Secretary and the General Secretary.
- (3) All money due to the Association shall be deposited in the Association's account by either the General Secretary or the Financial Secretary as may be deem fit by the President.

- (4) Any change in the composition in of the signatories shall be communicated to the Bank by the General Secretary acting under the instruction of the President within one week of such change.
- (5) The Financial Secretary shall during the last Congress of each session make known the financial position of the Association and a copy of such financial report shall be sent to all staff advisers.

PART THREE

SECTION 39

AWARD

- (1) The Association shall honour some distinguished indigenes of the State for their contribution to the development of the State through their activities provided that:
 - a. The honour shall not be awarded not more than once in an academic session to deserve person(s) and
 - b. The honour shall not be conferred on any person without the approval of the Congress
- (2) The Executive shall subject to the approval of the Congress determine what the honour shall look like
- (3) The Executive shall determine the name of the awards subject to the approval of the Congress

SECTION 40

- (1) The Association shall also, subject to the approval of the Congress give honour to the deserving member(s)
- (2) The honour shall be known as ‘Certificate of Merit Awards’
- (3) Recipients of the award shall be a member of the Association so honoured for his/her contribution towards the development of the Association

(4) The Executive subject to the approval of the Congress shall determine who qualifies for the award

SECTION 41

AMENDMENT

(1) The Association shall have the power to amend any part of this Constitution whenever it deems fit to do so.

(2) The amendment shall become effective only with a two-third (2/3) majority of the votes cast at the congress provided that:

- a. Not less than one-sixth (1/6) of the members of the Association are present and voted
- b. Where the Congress fails to amend any part of this Constitution, another day and date shall be fixed but on no such occasion shall any part of this Constitution be amended without strict compliance with Section 34(2)(a).

SECTION 42

(1) Any amendment, alteration, qualification or quantification made to any of this provision of this Constitution in accordance with the express provision of this Constitution shall become binding like other provision of this Constitution on all persons, group or persons as from the date on which such amendment is expected to be effective.

SCHEDULE

Oaths

OATHS OF OFFICE

I _____ do solemnly swear that I will be faithful and loyal to the National Association of Ondo State Student, Obafemi Awolowo University Chapter. That as _____ of the National Association of Ondo State Students, Obafemi Awolowo University Chapter, I will discharge my duties to the best of my ability, faithfully and in accordance with the Constitution of the Association and always in the best interest of the integrity, solidarity well-being and prosperity of the Association; that I will strive to preserve the aims and objectives

of the Association. That I will not allow my personal interest to influence my official conduct or decisions. That I will to the best of my ability preserve, protect and defend the Constitution of the National Association of Ondo State Students, Obafemi Awolowo University Chapter.

I will do right to all members of the Association without fear or favour, affection or ill-will and that I will devote myself to the service and well-being of the Association.

So help me God.

Chairman Sign/Date

Elected Candidate Sign/Date

ARRANGEMENT OF SECTIONS

CHAPTER ONE: General Provision

Sections

1. Supremacy of the Constitution
2. The Association
3. Aims and Objectives
4. Membership, Privileges and Obligations
5. The Congress

CHAPTER TWO: Officers, Patrons, Matrons and Staff Advisers of the Association

6. Officers of the Association
7. The President
8. The Vice President
9. The General Secretary
10. The Public Relation Officer
11. The Financial Secretary
12. The Director of Socials
13. The Assistance General Secretary
14. The Legislature
15. The Executive of the Association
16. Patrons, Matrons of the Association
17. Staff Advisers

CHAPTER THREE:Committee, Electoral Commission and Election into the Executive Post.

PART ONE

18. Committee
19. Appointment of the Chairman, Members of the Committee, Tenure and Terms
20. Orientation Programme
21. Social and Culture Committee
22. Power to create Committee

PART TWO

23. Electoral Commission
24. Election Petition
25. Qualification for Election
26. The Election
27. Election Procedure
28. Suspension of the Electoral Commission
29. Redress

PART FOUR

PART ONE

30. Miscellaneous – Removal of Officers

PART TWO

31. Finance of the Association
32. Accounts of the Association

PART THREE

33. Award
34. Honours
35. Amendments
36. Validity of Amendment

Amended codified and produced by: 2011/2012 Exco.

- | | |
|----------------------|---------------------------------|
| 1. President | Igbasan Caleb (08036438948) |
| 2. Vice President | Fagite Abiola |
| 3. General Secretary | Fagbemigun Israel (08138662963) |
| 4. Assist. Gen. Sec. | Sama Benedict |
| 5. Financial Sec. | Oladokun Oyewole |
| 6. Social Director | Babatunde Oladimeji C. |
| 7. P.R.O | Akinrinwa Omotayo |